
EAST VILLAGE ASSOCIATION 

1041  Marke t  St ree t  #200   San Diego ,  CA 92101   Phone  619-546-5636  
Emai l :  in fo@Eas tV i l lageSanD iego.com   Webs i te :  www.Eas tVi l l ageSanD iego.com  

Facebook /  Twi t te r  /  Ins tagram:  @EastV i l lageSD   #EastV i l lageSD 

East Village Association – Board of Directors’ Meeting 
Thursday, March 21, 2024 at 3:00pm 

UCSD Park & Market (1100 Market Street #321) 

CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS POTENTIAL LEGAL ISSUE ON ITEM 6 

AGENDA 

1. Meeting Protocol & Introductions / Terry McCleary, President

2. Non-Agenda: Public Comment & Announcements
Please keep comments directed to the topic being discussed.

3. Approval of February 15, 2024 Minutes Action Item 

4. Community Reports
SDPD, City Attorney’s Office, Senator Atkins’ Office, Assemblymember Boerner’s Office,
Supervisor Vargas’ Office, Mayor Gloria’s Office, Councilmember Whitburn’s Office,
Economic Development Department, DCPC and Downtown San Diego Partnership.

5. Committee Reports:
Executive Committee / Terry McCleary, President
a. YTD Draft Financial Report Action Item 
b. CD Rollover
c. Application of SD County Small Business Stimulus Grant Action Item 
d. Bylaws Task Force Recommendations Action Item 
e. Alternate Board Member Forms Received Action Item 
f. Annual Meeting Date
g. Next Meeting: April 11, 2024, at 3:00pm

UCSD Park & Market (1100 Market Street)  

 District Identity & Placemaking Committee / Robyn Spencer & Justin Navalle, Co-Chairs 
a. Olive Public Relations Status Report
b. East Village Block Party on Opening Weekend – Sat., 3/30
c. East Village Sponsorship Guide
d. Tecture Wayfinding Sign Locations Task Force
e. World Design Capital 2024 Community-Oriented Grant – Update
f. Next Meeting: April 4, 2024, at 2:00pm

UCSD Park & Market (1100 Market Street) 

P. 3 - 8

P. 9 - 13
P. 14

P. 15 - 38
P. 39

P. 40 - 41
P. 42
P. 43 - 53

1



Civil Sidewalks Committee / Diana Puetz, Chair 
a. City of San Diego Encampment Ban Enforcement in East Village – Update
b. Downtown Sidewalk Vending Ordinance Amendments – Update
c. Recent Reports of Security Concerns Around Tailgate Parking Lot
d. Next Meeting: As Needed

Parking & Mobility Committee / Hasan Ahmed & Manny Rodriguez, Co-Chairs 
a. Enhanced Pedestrian Lighting Park Blvd. – Update
b. Community Parking District:

i. FRED Shuttle Service Funding - Update
ii. FY25 Budget Amendments Action Item 
iii. Amendment of Council Policy 100-18 Action Item 

c. Next Meeting: As Needed

Land Use & Project Review Committee / Tyler Winslow, Chair 
a. Proposed Draft Amendments to City of San Diego’s LDC for Downtown - Update
b. Next Meeting: As Needed

6. CLOSED SESSION: BOARD MEMBERS & STAFF TO GO INTO CLOSED SESSION TO
DISCUSS POTENTIAL LITIGATION. GENERAL PUBLIC WILL BE EXCUSED FOR
DURATION OF CLOSED SESSION. ANY DECISIONS MADE WILL BE REPORTED AFTER
CLOSED SESSION.

a. Potential Litigation with Past Employee – Update Action Item 
b. East Village Block Party Event Management Performance – Update Action Item 

7. REOPEN MEETING & REPORT TO PUBLIC: Update on East Village Association’s
decision, if any, on Closed Session item.

8. Next Meeting: April 18, 2024, at 3:00pm 
UCSD Park & Market (1100 Market Street) 

9. Adjournment Action Item 

BROWN ACT. Government Code 54950 (The Brown Act) requires that a brief description of each item to be 
transacted or discussed be posted at least 72-hours prior to a regular meeting. The Corporation posts all Board and 
Committee agendas at meeting location and on the EVA website. Action may not be taken on items not identified 
as such and posted on the agenda. Meeting facilities may be accessible to persons with disabilities. If you require 
special assistance to participate in the meeting, notify Ethan Olsen at 619-546-5636 or via email at 
ethan@newcityamerica.com at least 48-hours prior to the meeting.  

P. 54

P. 55 - 56

2



  

EAST VILLAGE ASSOCIATION  
 

1041 Marke t  Street  #200   San Diego,  CA 92101   Phone 619-546-5636 
Emai l :  in fo@EastVi l lageSanDiego.com   Websi te:  www.EastVi l lageSanDiego.com 

Facebook /  Twi t ter  /  Instagram: @EastVi l lageSD   #EastVi l lageSD 
 
 

 
East Village Association - Board of Directors’ Meeting 

Thursday, February 15, 2024, at 3:00pm 
UCSD Park & Market (1100 Market Street #321) 

 
PRESENT: Terry McCleary, Tyler Winslow, Robyn Spencer, David Miles, Todd Brown, Simon 

Andrews, Chan Buie, Kristen Rice, Manny Rodriguez, Todd Miller, Tyler Lindsay, 
Jason Wallace, Andrew Shemirani, Ken Kawachi, Angie Weber, Justin Navalle, 
Daniel Fellus 

 
ABSENT: Hasan Ahmed, Diana Puetz, Andrew Greenberg, Jonathan Francese, Lisa Gerson, 

Davis Newton, Sarah Potter  
 
GUESTS: Larry Turner, Clayton Fowler, Joyce Summer, Eleanor Lazar  
 
STAFF: Marco Li Mandri, Dominic Li Mandri, Tammy De Luca, Chris Gomez, Ethan Olsen  
 
MINUTES: 

Item Discussion Action Taken? 

1. Meeting Protocol &   
    Introductions /  
    Terry McCleary,  
    President   

1. The meeting was called to order by the EVA 
District Manager, Dominic Li Mandri at 
3:00pm.   

1. No action taken 
 
 

2. Non-Agenda: Public  
    Comment &  
    Announcements  

2. Nothing to report.  2. No action taken 

3. Approval of  
    January 18,     
    2024 Minutes  
 

3. Minutes from the January 18, 2024, Board 
of Directors meeting were presented for 
review.  

3. David Miles moved 
to accept the January 
18, 2024, minutes. 
Todd Miller seconded 
the motion. Motion 
passed unanimously. 

4. Community Reports 4. Clayton Fowler provided an update from 
the Downtown San Diego Partnership’s Clean 
& Safe program. Clayton reported that the 

4. No action taken  
 
 

3



 

next East Village Clean & Safe walkabout will 
be held on March 29, 2024, at Hinar Bakery.  
 
Joyce Summer, active Cortez Hill resident 
noted that while East Village bears the brunt 
of the unhoused population, the unhoused 
population in Cortez Hill has surged 47%. 
Joyce noted that Eric Nemoseck of SD Can 
Do addressed a strong letter to the Mayor’s 
Office stating that adequate signage is still not 
properly posted, and encampments near 
schools are not being enforced.  

5. Committee Reports 
 
    Executive   
    Committee /  
    Terry McCleary,  
    President 
 
5.a. YTD Draft Financial  
       Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.b. Letter of Support  
       for FY25 Funding  
       Community  
       Parking Districts 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.c. Ratify Virtual Vote  
       on Negotiated Cox  
       Communication  
       Settlement 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.a.  Tammy De Luca presented the January 
financial report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.b. Dominic reminded the Board that the 
Downtown Community Parking Districts may 
not be funded for special projects per usual. 
Dominic reported that the Downtown Parking 
Management Group met today and reported 
that there is still no clarity as to whether the 
city will absorb the $2.5 million in 
expenditures for FRED and garage bond 
payments from the City’s 55% of parking 
meter revenues. Dominic requested that City 
staff provide DPMG with clarification prior to 
the next budget meeting on March 14, 2024.  
 
Dominic suggested that the EVA submit a 
letter to Councilmember Whitburn in support 
of the city taking on FRED and the garage 
bond payments out of their 55% from parking 
meter revenue. 
 
5.c. Dominic stated that the Virtual Vote on 
the Negotiated $2,000 Cox Communications 
Settlement was to be ratified by the Board.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.a. Robyn Spencer 
moved to accept the 
January financial 
report. David Miles 
seconded the motion. 
Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
5.b. Todd Brown 
moved to approve the 
EVA letter of support 
for FY25 Funding 
Community Parking 
Districts as presented. 
Angie Weber 
seconded the motion. 
Simon Andrews 
abstained. Motion 
passed.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.c. Tyler Winslow 
moved to approve the 
payment negotiated 
with Cox 

4



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.d. Creation of Annual  
       Bylaws Task Force  
       Review 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.e. NCA FY23-24  
       Annual  
       Performance  
       Review 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.f. Next Meeting: 
 
 
 
 
    District Identity &  
    Placemaking    
    Committee /  
    Robyn Spencer &  
    Justin Navalle,  
    Co-Chairs 
 
5.a. Olive Public  
       Relations  
       Status Report 
 
5.b. 2024 East Village  
       Tree Lighting &  
       Holiday Market   
       Date – Sat., 11/30 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.d. Dominic called for a creation of the 
Bylaws Task Force to perform the required 
annual review of the EVA Bylaws per the City 
of San Diego BID contract. Dominic 
appointed Terry McCleary, Chan Buie and 
Tyler Winslow to the Bylaws Task Force.  
 
 
 
5.e. Dominic reported that EVA has been 
under New City America management since 
November of 2022. Dominic reported that an 
accomplishment report will be compiled to 
capture the work completed from November 
of 2022 through FY24.   
 
Dominic suggested that moving into FY25, 
annual goals be set by the Board in June and 
rolled out for the entirety of each Fiscal Year 
progressively. 
 
5.f. The next Executive Committee is 
scheduled for Thursday, March 14, 2024, at 
3:00pm at UCSD Park & Market (1100 Market 
Street #321). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.a. Eleanor Lazar gave an update on Olive’s 
public relations activities in the East Village. 
   
 
5.b. Dominic stated that in an effort to 
precede Balboa Park’s December Nights, the 
DIP Committee & Staff would like to pursue 
Saturday, November 30, 2024, as the new 
date for the East Village Tree Lighting & 
Holiday Market.  

Communications in 
the settlement 
amount of $2,000. 
Terry McCleary 
seconded the motion. 
Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
5.d. Robyn Spencer 
moved to create the 
Bylaws Task Force for 
the annual review of 
the Bylaws. Daniel 
Fellus seconded the 
motion. Motion 
passed unanimously.  
 
5.e. No action taken 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.f. No action taken 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.a. No action taken 
 
 
 
5.b. Todd Brown 
moved to approve 
November 30, 2024, 
as the new date for 
the East Village Tree 
Lighting. Chan Buie 

5



 

 
 
 
 
5.c. East Village Block  
       Party on Opening  
       Weekend – Sat.,  
       3/30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.d. Next Meeting: 
 
 
 
 
    Civil Sidewalks 
    Committee /  
    Diana Puetz, Chair 
 
5.a. City of San Diego  
       Encampment Ban  
       Enforcement in  
       East Village –  
       Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.b. Downtown San  
       Diego Sidewalk  
       Vending Ordinance  
       Amendments –  
       Update 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
5.c. Justin Navalle reported that the East 
Village Block Party on Opening Weekend is 
scheduled for Saturday, March 30, 2024, from 
10:00am to 4:30pm on J Street from 7th to 
10th Avenues with a Padres vs. Giants first 
pitch at 4:15pm. Justin reported that there will 
be 3-4 stages with DJs, 2 main fenced in bars, 
San Diego sports teams, as well as a mixed 
variety of retail and food vendor booths. 
Justin reported that top line revenue appears 
healthy. Justin anticipates a significant 
attendance considering the sold-out Padres 
vs. Giants game. Justin encouraged EVA 
Board Members to volunteer and attend.  
 
5.d. The next District Identity & Placemaking 
Committee meeting is scheduled for March  
7, at 2:00pm at UCSD Park & Market (1100 
Market Street). 
 
 
 
 
 
5.a. Dominic stated that the Encampments 
around East Village are lacking active 
enforcement.  
 
Officer Larry Turner of SDPD’s Central 
Division reported that Central Division will 
begin regularly patrolling the area and 
assisting the Neighborhood Policing Division 
(NPD) with encampment enforcement. 
Officer Turner noted that Central Division is 
continuing to experience a significant labor 
shortage.  
 
5.b. Dominic stated that City Council met on 
Tuesday, February 13, to review the 
amendments to the Downtown San Diego 
Sidewalk Vending Ordinance. Dominic 
reported that he and Ethan Olsen gave 
testimony on behalf of the EVA in support of 
the amendments to the vending ordinance. 
The amendments to the vending ordinance 
passed with a vote of 6 yeas – 0 nays.  
 

seconded the motion. 
Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
5.c. No action taken 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.d. No action taken 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.a. No action taken 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.b. No action taken 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



 

5.c. Next meeting: 
 
    Parking & Mobility     
    Committee / Hasan    
    Ahmed, Chair 
 
5.a. Enhanced  
       Pedestrian Lighting  
       Park Blvd. –   
       Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.b. Next Meeting: 

5.c. The Civil Sidewalks Committee will meet 
as needed.   
 
 
 
 
5.a. Dominic gave an update on the Enhanced 
Pedestrian Lighting on Park Boulevard. 
Dominic stated that ProCal has received 
pushback from the City of San Diego with 
issues and concerns on the enhanced 
pedestrian strand lighting project along Park 
Boulevard.  
 
Ethan Olsen noted that ProCal is 
approximately 75% completed with the Park 
Boulevard project and reported that ProCal 
has never experienced these roadblocks from 
the city.  
 
The Board urged staff to contact the Office of 
Councilmember Whitburn and Mayor Gloria 
for support on the project, emphasizing that 
the project has been approved and funded 
using Downtown Community Parking District 
funding.   
 
5.b. The Parking & Mobility Committee will 
meet as needed.  

5.c. No action taken 
  
 
 
 
 
5.a. No action taken  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.b. No action taken  

6. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

a. East Village Block  
         Party Event  
         Management  
         Performance –  
         Update  

  
 
 
 
 
 

7. REOPEN MEETING & 
REPORT TO PUBLIC: 
Update on East Village 
Association’s decision, 
if any, on Closed 
Session Item.                        

7. Dominic reported that the 2023 East Village 
Block Party had resulted in a significant 
revenue loss to EVA and there were serious 
mismanagement concerns that directly 
impacted EVA’s event bottom-line. 
 
 

7.a. Todd Brown 
moved to authorize 
staff to draft and send 
a demand letter 
directly to The Best 
Event’s insurance 
provider. Angie Weber 
seconded the motion. 
Motion passed 
unanimously. 

8. Next Meeting: 8. The next Board of Directors meeting will be 
held on Thursday, March 21, 2024, at 3:00pm 

8. No action taken  

7



 

at UCSD Park & Market (1100 Market Street, 
Room 321). 

9. Adjournment   9. Meeting adjourned. 
 
 

9. Robyn Spencer 
moved to adjourn the 
meeting. Angie Weber 
seconded the motion. 
Motion passed 
unanimously.    

Minutes taken by: Ethan Olsen, New City America. 
 
 
 
 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14

ethan
Rectangle

ethan
Rectangle

ethan
Rectangle



 

EAST VILLAGE ASSOCIATION 
 

1041 Marke t  S t ree t  #200    San D iego,  CA 92101   619-546-5636  
in fo@Eas tV i l l ageSanDiego .com   www.Eas tV i l lageSanDiego .com 

Facebook  /  Ins tagram /  T ikTok  /  X :  @EastV i l lageSD   #Eas tV i l lageSD 
 

 
BYLAWS OF THE  EAST VILLAGE  ASSOCIATION, INC. 

A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT 501(c)(3) PUBLIC BENEFIT CORPORATION 
Adopted July 27, 2023 TBD 

 
ARTICLE 1 
OFFICES 

 
Section 1. Name 
The name of this Corporation (“Corporation”) is “East Village Association, Inc.” a 
California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation. 
 
Section 2. Principal Office 
The principal office of the Corporation for the transaction of its business is located in the 
City of San Diego in San Diego County, California, within the boundaries of the Downtown 
San Diego (District).  
 
Section 3. Change of Address 
The Board of Directors (the "Board") may change the Principal Office of the Corporation 
from one location to another within the City of San Diego.  Any change of the location of 
the Principal Office shall be noted by the Secretary on these Bylaws opposite this Section 
or this Section may be amended to state the new location. 
 

ARTICLE 2 
PURPOSES 

 
The primary objectives and purposes of this Corporation shall be: 
 
A) To bring about the revitalization of the District area. 

 
B) To bring about the investment of private and public capital within the District area for 

public benefit and charitable purposes. 
 
C) To bring about the increased provision of quality public improvements and 

educational, cultural, artistic, charitable, and social services within the District area 
for public benefit and charitable purposes. 

 
D) To bring about the increased economic well-being of businesses, employees, and 

residents within the District. 
 

15



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 2 of 24 
 

E) To promote improvement within the East Village community through activities which 
contribute to the economic and neighborhood well-being of the District area. 

 
F) Upon the dissolution or winding-up of this Corporation, its assets remaining after 

payment, of all debts and liabilities of this Corporation, shall be distributed to a 
nonprofit fund, foundation, or Corporation which is organized and operated 
exclusively for charitable, educational and/or religious purposes and which has 
established its tax-exempt status under Internal Revenue Code section 501(c)(3). 

 
ARTICLE 3 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
Section 1. No Members 
This Corporation shall have no members, as that term is defined in Section 5056 of the 
California Nonprofit Corporation Law. Unless otherwise provided herein or in the 
California Nonprofit Corporation Law, any action which would otherwise require action or 
approval by a majority of all members shall require only approval of the Board of Directors.  
All rights which would otherwise vest in members shall vest in the Board of Directors.  
Nothing in these Bylaws shall be construed as limiting the right of the Corporation to refer 
to persons associated with it, who participate in any activities of the Corporation, as 
"members" even though such persons are not members, as defined in section 5056 of 
the California Corporations Code.  Such persons shall be deemed to be affiliated persons 
with respect to the Corporation as that term is provided in section 5332(b) of the California 
Nonprofit Corporation Law, and no such reference shall constitute anyone a member of 
this Corporation or confer any legal rights on such persons with respect to the affairs of 
the Corporation. 
 

ARTICLE 4                                                                                   
DIRECTORS 

 
Section 1. Number and Term 
The Corporation shall have a minimum of seven (7) and a maximum of twenty-fivethirty 
(2530) Directors and collectively they shall be known as the Board of Directors.  The exact 
number of Directors shall be fixed from time-to-time by resolution by the Board of 
Directors.  Subject to the foregoing provisions for changing the number of Directors, the 
following seats shall be allocated to the Board of Directors:  
 
A) No less than a two-thirds majority of the seats on the Board of Directors, at all times, 

shall be filled by East Village Business Improvement District Directors (as defined in 
Section 2 of this Article 4). 
 

B) The balance of seats shall be filled by CommunityCommunity-at-Large and Property 
Directors (as defined in Section 2 of this Article 4). 

 
C) Directors shall be elected for a term of two (2) years. However, following the first 

election of Directors after adoption of Sections 1, 2 and 3 of Article 4 from the March 

16



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 3 of 24 
 

16, 2023 Board Meeting, one half (½) of the Business Directors and one half (½) of 
the Community and Property Directors shall serve a term of two (2) one (1) year, 
and the other half (½) of the of the Business Directors and one half (½) of the 
Community and Property Directors shall serve a term of two (2) years.   

 
The Directors may assign the one (1) year terms by unanimous agreement, but in the 
absence of such an agreement, the Directors receiving one (1) year terms shall be chosen 
by lot at the meeting at which the election is held.  This Terms will staggering of terms 
willto ensure that the entire Board is not replaced within one (1) calendar year. Directors’ 
terms shall commence on the date of their election and expire on the date of the election 
of the successor to the Director whose term is expiring.   
 
Board Members can nominate a non-Board Member to serve as their alternate at Board 
and Committee meetings when he/she is unable to attend. Alternates absences, in place 
of primary Board Members, count for or against the primary’s Board and Committee 
attendance obligation. Alternates cannot attend more than 6 times per year to meet 
attendance requirements.   
 
Section 2. Qualifications 
Members of the Board shall possess the following qualifications: 
 
A) Business Directors, or their designated representatives, shall be owners of and 

holders of valid San Diego Business Licenses within the boundaries of the East 
Village Business Improvement District (BID), who have made full payment of all BID 
assessments due for the previous fiscal year, (as defined in these Bylaws). 
 
1) Associate members are classified as Business Directors and are eligible for the 

same benefits as a Business Director with a San Diego Business License.  
Associate members will be assessed a fee annually at the beginning of the 
fiscal year (July 1st).  The fee will be set by the Board of Directors and is subject 
to be changed annually. 

 
B) CommunityCommunity-at-Large and Property Directors shall be persons who: 
 

1) Own and operate a property or properties located within the boundaries of the 
District, or their duly appointed authorized representative (as defined in these 
Bylaws) of such property owner and operator; or  

 
2) Community members who reside within the boundaries of the District; or  
 
3) Individuals who do not reside, own property or operate a business within the 

District boundaries, but who show a high degree of interest and concern for the 
welfare of the District and who understand its connection to the community-at-
large, and who the Board believes may assist the Corporation to fulfill its goals 
as a public benefit Corporation. 

 

17



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 4 of 24 
 

C) To be eligible to serve on the Board of Directors after the first Annual Meeting on 
April 20, 2023, the nominees must agree to the following: 

 
1) The nominee must agree with the Purpose of the Corporation, Article 2; 

 
2) The nominee must commit to attending Board meetings unless previously 

excused; and 
 

3) The nominee must serve on at least one (1) standing committee of the Board.  
 
Section 3. Nomination and Election 
Not less than fourty-five (45) thirty (30) days before the date set forth for the Annual 
meeting of the Directors, the President shall appoint at least two three (23) other  Directors 
as the Nominating Task Force to solicit nominees for consideration for election as 
Directors. Two (2) of the Nominations Task Force members whom shall be Business 
Owners. The names so proposed by the Task Force shall be presented to the Board at 
its Annual meeting. The Nominations Task Force shall include the President and at least 
two (2) other Directors.  
 
The Nominations Task Force shall provide nomination applications to all eligible business 
owners, property owners, community members and current Directors.  Details on the 
nominations process and how to apply shall be mailed out at least fourty-five (45) thirty 
(30) days prior to the date set for the Annual meeting.  A with a due date of at least ten 
fourteen (1014) days prior to the Annual meeting date shall be stated as the deadline for 
submitting nominations to the Nominations Task Force. 
 
A) The nominees, who have been deemed to be qualified, consistent with these Bylaws 

shall be presented to the Board for consideration of election to the Board at its 
Annual meeting. 

 
B) At the Annual meeting the Directors may vote to accept some or all of the nominees 

submitted by the Nominations Task Force. The election of Directors shall comply 
with the allocation provided in Section 1 of this Article 4.   

 
Nominations may not be made from the floor but only in accordance with the procedures 
set forth in this Section 3 or such other procedures as may be determined by the Board.  
However, the Board shall have the authority to appoint any Director who meets the 
qualifications of the Board, at any time during the year, based upon vacancies or openings 
on the Board.  Between Annual meetings, the Executive Committee shall be the 
Committee authorized to review and approve new nominees to present to the Board for 
final consideration.  
 
Section 4. Powers 
A) General Powers. Subject to the provisions of the California Nonprofit Corporation 

law, and any limitations in the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, the activities and 

18



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 5 of 24 
 

affairs of this Corporation shall be conducted, and all corporate powers shall be 
exercised by or under the direction of the Board of Directors. 

 
B) Specific Powers.  Without prejudice to the general powers stated in sub-section A in 

Section 4 and subject to the same limitations, the Directors shall have the power to: 
 

1) Select and remove all officers, employees and agents of this Corporation,  
prescribe any powers and duties for the officers, employees and agents that 
are consistent with law, with the Articles of Incorporation, and with these 
Bylaws; and fix the compensation of the officers, employees and agents; 

 
2) Change the Principal Executive Office or the principal business office in the 

State of California from one location to another within the City of San Diego;  
Cause this Corporation to be qualified to do business in any other state, 
territory, dependency or country and conduct business within or outside the 
State of California for the holding of any meeting, including annual meetings; 

 
3) Borrow money and incur indebtedness on behalf of this Corporation and cause 

to be executed and delivered for corporate purposes, in the corporate name, 
promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, 
hypothecations, and other evidences of debt and securities; 

 
4) Accept on behalf of this Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest or devise 

for the general purposes or for any special purpose of this Corporation; 
 
5) Contract for goods and/or services for this Corporation, subject to the 

limitations elsewhere provided in these Bylaws; Maintain and otherwise 
manage or cause to be managed, all other property acquired by this 
Corporation; Contract and pay maintenance, utilities, materials and supplies 
and services, relating to facilities; and employ personnel reasonably necessary 
for the operation of this Corporation, including lawyers and accountants where 
appropriate; 

 
6) Enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of 

and on behalf of this Corporation, and such authority may be general or 
confined to a specific instance; 

 
7) Adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of facilities of this 

Corporation, and to establish penalties for the infraction thereof; 
 
8) Conduct, manage and control the affairs and business of this Corporation; 
 
9) Contract and pay for the expenses of this Corporation; 
 

19



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 6 of 24 
 

10) Prescribe such rules relating to the affairs and conduct of this Corporation as 
in the judgment of the Board, from time to time, may be found necessary or 
proper; 

 
11) Pay taxes and special assessments which are or would become a lien on 

property of this Corporation; 
 
12) Exercise all other powers granted to the Board by the Articles of Incorporation 

or these Bylaws or the laws of the State of California, including, without 
limitation, the California Nonprofit Corporation Law; and 

 
13) Remove a Director from the Board for cause including non-compliance of Board 

policies, non-compliance of City, County, State of Federal contract 
requirements, failure of a Business Director to pay assessments levied by the 
District in a timely manner, malfeasance, conflicts of interest or unauthorized 
use of the Corporation’s funds and/or name for personal gain. 

 
All checks, drafts or orders for the payment of debts, notes or other evidences of 
indebtedness issued in the name of this Corporation shall be signed by such officer or 
officers, agent or agents of this Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time 
be determined by resolution of the Board.  In the absence of such determination by the 
Board, such instruments shall be signed by the Treasurer and at least one other officers 
of the corporation.  
 
Section 5. Compensation  
The Directors shall serve without compensation except that any Director may be 
reimbursed for his or her expenses incurred in the performance of his or her duties pursuant 
to Section 1 of Article 13. 
 
Section 6. Conflict of Interest (Restriction re: Interested Directors) 
Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws, not more than thirty percent (30%) 
of the persons serving on the Board may be interested persons.  For purposes of this 
Section, "interested persons" means either: 
 
A) Any person currently being compensated by the Corporation for services rendered 

it within the previous twelve (12) months, whether as a full or part-time officer or 
other employee, independent contractor; or 

 
B) Any brother, sister, ancestor, descendant, spouse, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, 

son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, or father-in-law of any such interested 
person. 

 
In any and all cases, a Board member who also happens to be an “interested person” 
shall not move, second or vote on any contract in which they have a financial interest. 
 

20



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 7 of 24 
 

Owning a real property or a business within the boundaries of the District does not render 
a Director an interested person. 
 
Section 7. Vacancies and Removal 
Vacancies on the Board may result from the death, removal or resignation of a Director 
as provided in this Section 7, or by a duly enacted increase in the number of authorized 
Board members.  
 
Any Board member with three (3) unexcused absences from regularly scheduled Board 
meetings within a one (1) year period shall be automatically removed from the Board 
without any formal action required to be taken by the Board.  Any Board member who 
misses four (4) regular Board meeting within a one (1) year period, based on a mix of 
excused or unexcused, shall be automatically removed from the Board without any formal 
action required to be taken by the Board.  The Executive Committee has the ability to 
review and waive the removal of a Director., unless reviewed and waived by the Executive 
Committee.  
 
The Board of Directors may remove and declare vacant the seat of a Director who has 
been declared of unsound mind by a final order of court, or for whom a guardian or 
conservator of the person has been appointed by a court, or who has been convicted of 
a felony, or who has been found by a final order or judgment of any court to have breached 
any duty under Section 5230 and following of the California Nonprofit Corporation Law. 
 
Any Director may be removed from the Board without cause by the affirmative vote of 
Directors constituting at least two-thirds (2/3) of the total membership of the Board then 
in office.  Written notice of the Board’s intention to remove a Director from the Board shall 
be given fifteen (15) days prior to the date of the proposed removal vote.  The notice shall 
identify the reasons for the proposed removal and shall provide an opportunity for the 
subject Director to appear and be heard, orally or in writing, not less than five (5) days 
before the removal vote. The notice shall be sent to the subject Director by first class or 
certified mail. Any removal vote shall be by secret written ballot.  Upon an affirmative vote 
of removal of a Director, the removed Director’s seat shall be deemed vacant. 
 
Any Director may resign effective upon giving written notice to the President or, the 
Secretary of this Corporation.  The effective date of the resignation shall be the effective 
date stated in the notice of resignation, or if no date is specified in the notice, the 
resignation shall be effective on the date the notice of resignation is received by the 
President or the Secretary. Upon the effective date of the resignation, the resigned 
Director’s seat shall be deemed vacant,  
 
Vacancies on the Board may be filled at any time by the affirmative vote or written consent 
of a majority of the Directors then in office. Vacancies and new appointments to the Board 
shall be filled or recommended by a written recommendation of the Executive Committee. 
If the number of Directors, then in office is less than a quorum, the vacancy may be filled 
by (a) the unanimous written consent of all of the Directors then in office without a 
meeting, or b) the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors then in office at a duly 

21



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 8 of 24 
 

noticed regular or special meeting; or (c) a sole remaining Director. Persons filling a 
vacancy shall meet the qualifications provided in Section 2 of this Article 4.  Any person 
filling a vacancy created by the death, removal or resignation of a Business Director shall 
meet the qualifications for a Property Owner Director as provided in Section 2 of this 
Article 4.  Any person filling a vacancy created by the death, removal or resignation of a 
CommunityCommunity-at-Large and Property Director shall meet the qualifications for a 
CommunityCommunity-at-Large and Property Director as provided in Section 2 of this 
Article 4.  
 
A person elected to fill a vacancy as provided by this Section shall hold office until the 
next regular annual election of the Board of Directors or until his or her death, resignation, 
or removal from office. 
 
 
Section 8. Non-Liability of Directors 
The Directors shall not be personally liable for the debts, liabilities, or other obligations of 
the Corporation. 
 
Section 9. Indemnification of Directors 
A) Right of Indemnification.  The Corporation shall indemnify any person who was or is a 

party to any threatened, pending or completed civil lawsuit or proceeding, whether 
administrative, or investigative, including all appeals (other than an action brought by 
or on behalf of the Corporation) by reason of the fact that that person is or was acting 
as a Director, officer, or employee of the Corporation.  Indemnification shall be against 
all expenses, including without limitation, attorneys' fees, court costs, expert witness 
fees, judgments, decrees, and fines actually paid by the person in settlement of any 
action, suit, or proceedings provided that the Board of Directors shall first have 
determined, in its sole judgment, that the person acted in good faith and in a manner 
that he or she reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the Corporation.  The 
termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, or settlement shall not 
of itself create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith. 
 

B) Gross Negligence or Misconduct.  No indemnification shall be made for any claim, 
issue, or matter as to which the person is finally adjudged to be liable for gross 
negligence or intentional misconduct in the performance of his or her duties as director, 
officer, trustee, fiduciary or employee. 

 
C) Indemnity for Successful Defense.  In spite of any limitations set forth in sub-sections 

A) and B) of this Section 9, to the extent that any person has been successful on the 
merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in those 
Sections, that person shall be indemnified against all expenses actually and 
reasonably paid by him or her, including, without limitation, attorneys' fees, court costs, 
and expert witness fees. 

 
D) Advancement of Expenses.  Expenses incurred in defending a civil action, suit, or 

proceeding may be paid by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of the 

22



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 9 of 24 
 

action, suit, or proceeding as authorized by the Board of Directors, on receipt by the 
Board of Directors of an undertaking by or on behalf of the director, officer, or employee 
involved to repay the expenses if it is ultimately determined that the person is not 
entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation as authorized in this Section. 

 
E) Indemnification Not Exclusive.  The indemnification provided under this Section shall 

not be deemed to be exclusive or any other rights to which any person indemnified 
may be entitled under any regulation, agreement, vote of the stockholders or 
disinterested directors, or otherwise.  The indemnification provided under this Section 
shall be deemed exclusive of any other power to indemnify or right to indemnification 
that the Corporation or nay person referred to in this Section may have or acquire.  
Indemnification shall continue and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, and 
administrators of any person entitled to indemnification under this Section. 

 
F) Liability Insurance.  The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf 

of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee, or designated agent of the 
Corporation against any liability asserted against and incurred by that person whether 
or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify that person under the 
provisions of these Bylaws. 

 
ARTICLE 5 

DIRECTORS MEETINGS 
 

Section 1. Meetings Subject to the Brown Act 
All Regular, Annual, Special and Emergency Meetings of the Board of Directors are 
subject to the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Section 54950 et 
seq.) (“the Brown Act”). 
 
Section 2. Annual Meeting 
An Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors is for the purpose of electing members to 
the Board of Directors and appointing officers of the Corporation.  This process shall be 
held each yearannually. between July and October each year, except in the first year of 
the amendment of these bylaws in 2023.  The Annual Meeting shall be deemed a Regular 
Meeting for purposes of scheduling, notice and posting of agendas. 
 
Section 3. Regular Meetings 
Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at a time and place as set by 
resolution of the Board of Directors from time-to-time.  The Board has the authority to 
alter the time and place of the Regular Meetings upon majority vote provided reasonable 
notification of such change is made in compliance with the Brown Act.  
 
Section 4.  Time and Place of Regular Meetings 
Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at a time and place within the 
City of San Diego designated from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors. 
 
Section 5. Agendas for Regular Meetings 

23



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 10 of 24 
 

At least 72-hours prior to a regular meeting, the Secretary or staff shall post at a location 
freely available to the public, an agenda in compliance with the Brown Act containing a 
brief general description of each item to be considered at the meeting, including items to 
be discussed as well as items that may be acted upon by the Board.  The Board or 
committees completed packet will be posted on the East Village website at the same time 
as required by the Board Act. 
 
Section 6. Special Meetings 
Other than an Emergency Meeting as hereinafter provided, any meeting of the Board of 
Directors held at a time or place other than the time or place specified for Regular 
Meetings) is designated as a Special Meeting.  Special Meetings of the Board of Directors 
may be called by the President or by a majority of the Board. 
 
Section 7. Time and Place of Special Meetings 
Special Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at the time and place within the 
City of San Diego designated by the person or persons calling the Special Meeting.  In 
the absence of such designation, the meeting shall be held at a place and a time 
designated by the President within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the request for the 
Special Meeting. 
 
Section 8. Notice of Special Meetings 
In compliance with the Brown Act, notice of a Special Meeting shall be provided 24 hours 
in advance of the meeting to all of the Directors and to all media outlets who have 
requested notification. The notice also must be posted at least 24 hours prior to the 
meeting in a location freely accessible to the public and on the East Village website. The 
notice shall indicate that the meeting is being called as a Special Meeting, and shall state 
the time, place of the meeting within the City of San Diego, and business to be considered 
or transacted at the meeting.  No other business shall be considered at the Special 
Meeting. 
 
Section 9. Emergency Meetings 
Emergency Meetings of the Board of Directors may be called only upon a determination 
by a majority of the Board that an emergency situation exists.  For the purposes of this 
section, “emergency” is defined as a crippling disaster, mass destruction, terrorist activity 
work stoppage or other activity which poses an immediate peril to public health, safety, 
or both, as determined by a majority of the Board. 
 
Section 10. Time and Place of Emergency Meetings 
Emergency Meetings shall be held at a time and place designated by the President. 
 
Section 11. Notice of Emergency Meetings 
Upon a determination by a roll call vote of a majority of the Board that an emergency as 
defined in Section 9 of this Article 4 exists, at least one hour’s telephonic notice of the 
time, place and subject of the Emergency Meeting, shall be given to all members of the 
Board and to all media outlets that have requested pursuant to the Brown Act that they 
receive notice of any Special Meetings called.  At the conclusion of the Emergency 

24



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 11 of 24 
 

Meeting, the minutes of the meeting, a list of persons who the Board notified or attempted 
to notify, a copy of the rollcall vote, and any actions taken at the Emergency Meeting shall 
be posted for a minimum of ten (10) days in a public place as soon after the Emergency 
Meeting as possible. 
 
Section 12. Adjourned Meetings 
Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned, postponed or continued meeting 
must be given to absent Directors if the time and place of the adjourned meeting are fixed 
at the meeting adjourned and if such adjourned meeting is held no more than forty-eight 
(48) hours from the time of the original meeting.  Notice shall be given of any adjourned 
regular or special meetings to Directors absent from the original meeting if the adjourned 
meeting is held more than forty-eight (48) hours from the time of the original meeting. So 
long as the time and place of the adjourned, postponed or continued meeting is publicly 
announced at the meeting adjourned, postponed or continued, no other notice of an 
adjourned, postponed or continued meeting need be given. 
 
Section 13. Closed Sessions 
The Board may conduct closed sessions regarding the following matters: a) the 
appointment, performance evaluation, discipline or dismissal of an employee; b) 
discussion with the Corporation’s attorney regarding pending litigation or a significant 
exposure to litigation c) granting authority to the Corporation’s negotiator concerning the 
price and terms of payment in connection with the purchase, sale, lease or exchange of 
real property by or for the Corporation; d) to meet and confer with the Corporation’s labor 
negotiator concerning discussions with employee organizations and unrepresented 
employees regarding salaries and fringe benefits; and e) meetings with the Corporation’s 
attorney, the chief of police, a security consultant or security operations manager, or their 
deputies, on matter posing a threat to the security of public buildings, or the public’s right 
of access to essential public services or facilities.  No person shall disclose information 
communicated in a closed session that is specifically related to the basis for the Board to 
meet in closed session (“confidential information”).  Such closed sessions may be held 
as part of a regular meeting of the Board, or at a special meeting convened for the sole 
purpose of the closed session.  All such closed sessions shall be conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of the Brown Act.  
  
Section 14. Annual Public Meeting 
The Corporation shall organize and conduct one annual public meeting to be noticed on the 
Corporation’s website and in a writing mailed to all record owners of property in the District.  
This meeting will be conducted at a location convenient to the District.  A City representative 
may attend to provide information and assistance in the conduct of the meeting.  The Annual 
meeting shall normally be held sometime each year between July Day and October.  
 
Section 15. Quorum for Meeting 
A quorum shall consist of fifty percent (50%) plus one (1) of the sitting Board of Directors.  
Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws or in the Articles of Incorporation of this 
Corporation, or by law, no business shall be considered by the Board at any meeting at 
which a quorum, as hereinafter defined, is not present, and the only motion which the 

25



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 12 of 24 
 

Chair shall entertain at such meeting is a motion to adjourn.  However, a majority of the 
Directors present at such meeting may adjourn from time-to-time until the time fixed for 
the next regular meeting of the Board.  The Directors present at a duly called and held 
meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to do business 
notwithstanding the loss of a quorum at the meeting due to a withdrawal of Directors from 
the meeting, provided that any action thereafter taken must be approved by at least a 
majority of the required quorum for such meeting or such greater percentage as may be 
required by law, or the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of this Corporation. 
 
Section 16. Majority Action as a Board Action 
Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the Directors present at a meeting 
duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the Board of Directors, unless the 
Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of this Corporation, or provisions of the California 
Nonprofit Corporation Law. 
 
Section 17. Voting  
Each Director shall have one (1) vote on each matter presented to the Board of Directors 
of committees for action.  No Director may vote by proxy, but the Director’s pre-approved 
alternate may vote representing the primary Director.   
 
Section 18. Action Without Meeting by Virtual or Written Ballot 
Any action that may be taken at any regular or special meetings of Directors may also be 
taken without a meeting by virtual or written ballot. If an action is taken without a meeting, 
the Corporation must distribute a virtual or written ballot to every Director entitled to vote 
on the matter. The ballot must have a description of the topic, state the proposed action, 
provide an opportunity to specify supportive, unsupportive or abstention of the action 
proposed, and provide a reasonable time within which to return the ballot to the 
Corporation. Approval by virtual or written ballot is valid only when the number of votes 
cast by ballot within the time period specified equals or exceeds the quorum required to 
be present at a meeting authorizing the action, and the number of approvals equals (half 
plus one (1)) or exceeds the number of votes that would be required to approve at a 
meeting at which the total number of votes cast was the same as the number of votes 
cast by ballot. 
 
Section 19. Conduct of Meetings 
Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be presided over by the President of the Board, 
or appointed Chairperson of the Board, or, in his or her absence, by the Vice President 
of the Corporation or, in the absence of each of these persons, by a Chairperson or the 
Executive Director chosen by a majority of the Directors present at the meeting.  The 
Secretary of the Corporation shall act as secretary of all meetings of the Board, provided 
that, in his or her absence, the presiding officer shall appoint another person or staff to 
act as Secretary of the Meeting. 
 
Meetings shall be governed by Roberts Rules of Order, as such rules may be revised 
from time to time, insofar as such rules are not inconsistent with or in conflict with these 
Bylaws, with the Articles of Incorporation of this Corporation, or with provisions of law. 

26



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 13 of 24 
 

 
Section 20. Telephonic Participation 
Any Director may participate in Regular, Special or Emergency Meetings by telephone 
conference, electronic video screen communication (skype or zoom), or similar 
communications equipment, so as long as all Directors can hear and be heard by one 
another. Participating in the meeting by such means allows Directors to participate in the 
dialogue but does not count towards quorum and are not allowed to participate in vote. 

 
ARTICLE 6 
OFFICERS 

 
Section 1. Number of Officers 
The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, and a 
Chief Financial Officer, who shall be designated the Treasurer.  Any number of offices 
may be held by the same person except that neither the Secretary nor the Treasurer may 
serve concurrently as the President. 
 
Section 2. Qualification, Election, and Term of Office 
A) The President, Vice President(s), Secretary(ies) and Chief Financial 

Officer/Treasurer(s) shall be selected from the membership of the Board and shall 
be Board members.   

 
B) Officers shall be elected individually each year by the Board of Directors at the 

Annual Meeting, or if a vacancy exists, at any time.  Normally, the officers shall be 
elected once the Annual meeting has appointed new Board members.  This shall be 
the first action of the new Board once seated. 

 
 
C) Officers shall be elected for two (2) year terms commencing 2023 and shall be voted 

in a staggered manner in the following schedule:  
 

 
1) President and Treasurer: Odd Years (i.e., 2023, 2025, etc.) 

 
2) Vice President(s) and Secretary(ies): Even Years (i.e. 2024, 2026, etc.) 

 
However, following the first election of Officers after adoption of Sections 1, 2 and 
3 of Article 4 from the March 16, 2023 Board Meeting, President and Treasurer 
shall serve a term of two (2) year, and the Vice President(s) and Secretary shall 
serve a term of one (1) years. 
 

D) Officers shall hold office for two (2) year terms.  All Officers shall serve their terms 
in full or until he or she resigns or is removed or is otherwise disqualified to serve, 
or until his or her successor shall be elected and qualified, whichever occurs first.  In 
the case an Officer vacates seat midterm, the successor shall complete the term 
and then can be considered for new term when the term cycle comes back up for 
nominations. 

27



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 14 of 24 
 

 
Section 3. Additional Officers 
A) The Board of Directors may appoint one or more auxiliary Vice Presidents, Assistant 

Secretaries, Assistant Treasurers, or other auxiliary officers or agents as it may 
deem desirable, and such officers shall serve such terms, have such authority, and 
perform such duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of 
Directors.  Such auxiliary officers need not be members of the Board of Directors. 

 
B) The Board of Directors shall appoint an Executive Director and/or a District Manager 

who shall serve as a non-voting ex-officio officer(s) of the Corporation, with such 
powers, duties and term of office as shall be assigned by the Board from time to 
time. 

 
Section 4. Duties of Officers 
A) President.  The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation 

and shall, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, supervise and control the 
affairs of the Corporation and the activities of the officers and staff.  He or she shall 
perform all duties incident to his or her office and such other duties as may be 
required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation of this Corporation, or by these 
Bylaws, or which may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors.  He 
or she shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors.  Except as otherwise 
expressly provided by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, he 
or she shall, in the name of the Corporation, execute such deeds, mortgages, bonds, 
contracts, checks, or other instruments which may from time to time be authorized 
by the Board of Directors. 
 

B) Vice President.  In the absence of the President, or in the event of his or her inability 
or refusal to act, the Vice President shall perform all the duties of the President, and 
when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions on, 
the President.  The Vice President shall have other powers and perform such other 
duties as may be prescribed by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these 
Bylaws, or as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors. 
 

C) Secretary.  The Secretary shall: 
 

1) Certify and keep at the office of the Corporation the original or a copy of these 
Bylaws as amended or otherwise altered to date. 
 

2) Keep at the office of the Corporation or at such other place as the Board may 
determine, a book of minutes of all meetings of the directors, and, if applicable, 
meetings of committees, recording therein the time and place of holding, 
whether regular or special, how called, how notice thereof was given, the 
names of those present or represented at the meeting, and the proceedings 
thereof. 
 

28



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 15 of 24 
 

3) See that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these 
Bylaws or as required by law. 

 
 

4) Be custodian of the records and of the seal of the Corporation and see that the 
seal is affixed to all duly executed documents, the execution of which on behalf 
of the Corporation under its seal is authorized by law or these Bylaws. 
 

5) Exhibit at all reasonable times to any director of the Corporation or to any owner 
of real property within the boundaries of the District, or to the duly appointed 
and authorized representative of such director or owner, upon request 
therefore, the Bylaws, and the minutes of the proceedings of the directors of 
the Corporation. 

 
6) In general, perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other 

duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation of this 
Corporation, or by these Bylaws, or which may be assigned to him or her from 
time to time by the Board of Directors. 
 

D) Treasurer.  Subject to the provisions of these Bylaws relating to the "Execution of 
Instruments, Deposits and Funds," the Treasurer shall: 
 
1) Have charge and custody of, and be responsible for, all funds and securities of 

the Corporation, and deposit all such funds in the name of the Corporation in 
such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as shall be selected by the 
Board of Directors or delegate such responsibilities to staff. 

 
2) Receive, and give receipt for, monies due and payable to the Corporation from 

any source whatsoever. 
 
3) Disburse, or cause to be disbursed, the funds of the Corporation as may be 

directed by the Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers for such 
disbursements. 

 
4) Keep and maintain adequate and correct accounts of the Corporation's 

properties and business transactions, including accounts of its assets, 
liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains and losses. 

 
5) Exhibit at all reasonable times the books of account and financial records to 

any director of the Corporation, or to any owner of real property within the 
boundaries of the District, or to the duly appointed and authorized 
representative of such director or owner, upon request, therefore. 

 
6) Render to the President and Directors, whenever requested, an account of any 

or all of his or her transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the 
Corporation. 

29



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 16 of 24 
 

 
7) Prepare, or cause to be prepared, and certify, or cause to be certified, the 

financial statements to be included in any required reports. 
 
8) In general, perform all duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other 

duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation of the 
Corporation, or by these Bylaws, or which may be assigned to him or her from 
time to time by the Board of Directors. 

 
Section 5. Compensation 
No director or officer of the Corporation shall receive compensation or salary for their 
service on the Board of Directors or as an officer. 

 
ARTICLE 7 

COMMITTEES 
 

Section 1. Executive Committee 
The President, the Vice President(s), the Secretary(ies) and the Treasurer(s) shall 
constitute an Executive Committee.  The Board of Directors shall delegate to the 
Executive Committee such of the powers and authority of the Board in the management 
of the business and affairs of the Corporation, except with respect to: 
 
A) The approval of any action which, under law or the provisions of these Bylaws, 

requires the approval of the majority of the Board of Directors.   
 

B) Appointing a new member to the Board or the filling of vacant Board seats. 
 
C) The amendment or repeal of Bylaws or the adoption of new Bylaws. 
 
D) The amendment or repeal or any resolution of the Board which by its express terms 

is not so amendable or retractable. 
 
E) The appointment of committees of the Board or the members thereof. 

 
F) Regularly review of the multiple budgets with the City contracts and non-public 

contracts. 
 
G) Review and approve any and all service contracts with the Corporation. 
 
H) Other tasks related to financial management as approved by the Board including tax 

returns, audits or reviews, and reports to the City and County of San Diego. 
 
I) The approval of any transaction to which this Corporation is a party and in which one 

or more of the Directors has a material financial interest, except as expressly 
provided in Section 5233(d)(3) of the California Nonprofit Corporation Law. 

 

30



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 17 of 24 
 

J) The Executive Committee sShall conduct an annual performance review, with 
feedback from the general public, of the Managing Administrator’s contract and 
present it to Board of Directors for additional feedback and recommendations. 

 
By a majority vote of its members then in office, the Board may at any time revoke or 
modify any or all of the powers or authority so delegated to the Executive Committee, 
increase or decrease the membership of the Executive Committee by not more than two 
members of the Board of Directors, and fill vacancies on the Executive Committee from 
the members of the board.  The Executive Committee shall keep regular minutes of its 
proceedings, cause them to be filed with the corporate records, and report the same to 
the Board of Directors from time to time as the Board may require. 
 
Section 2. Standing Committees and Task Forces 
The Corporation shall have such standing committees as may from time-to-time be 
designated by resolution of the Board of Directors.  Task forces can be designated by a 
resolution of the Board of Directors or a committee Chair.  Tasks forces traditionally will 
report finds to committee before presented to the Board of Directors.  Members of 
standing committees and task forces shall be appointed by the Board and/or the 
committee Chair.  Committees and task forces shall be advisory bodies to the Board of 
Directors and may consist of persons who are not also members of the Board (i.e., non-
seated stakeholders), and in no event shall the membership of standing committees and 
task forces include members of the Board of Directors constituting a quorum of the Board 
of Directors.  These additional committees and task forces shall act in an advisory 
capacity to the Board or committee they were created.. 
 
Section 4. Meetings and Actions of Committees.   
A) Executive Committee and Standing Committees.  Meetings and actions of the 

Executive Committee and any standing committees that may be created by the 
Board of Directors, shall be governed by, noticed, held and conducted in accordance 
with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act in the same manner as meetings of 
the Board of Directors as provided in Article 5 of these Bylaws.  The time for 
meetings of the Executive Committee and standing committees may be fixed by the 
Board of Directors, or the committee chair.   

 
B) Task Forces. Meetings and actions of Task Forces are not subject to the public 

meeting notice requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act and may be noticed, held 
and conducted in accordance with rules and regulations promulgated by the Board 
of Directors, provided that such rules and regulations are not inconsistent with the 
provisions of these Bylaws. 

 
ARTICLE 8 

EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS, DEPOSITS AND FUNDS 
 

Section 1. Execution of Instruments 
The Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, may by resolution 
authorize any officer or agent of the Corporation to enter into any contract or execute and 

31



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 18 of 24 
 

deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such authority 
may be general or confined to specific instances.  Unless so authorized, no officer, agent, 
or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or 
engagement, to pledge its credit or to render it liable monetary for any purpose or in any 
amount. 
 
Section 2. Checks and Notes 
Except as otherwise specifically determined by resolution of the Board of Directors, or as 
otherwise required by law, checks, drafts, promissory notes, orders for the payment of 
money, and other evidence of indebtedness of the Corporation shall be signed by at least 
two of the four of the Officers of the Corporation.   
 
Section 3. Deposits 
All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time-to-time to the credit of the 
Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of 
Directors may select. 
 
Section 4. Gifts 
The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, 
bequest, or devise for the charitable or public purposes of this Corporation. 

 
ARTICLE 9 
REPORTS 

 
Section 1. Annual Report   
Within one-hundred and fifty (150) days after the end of the fiscal year, the Corporation shall 
submit an “Annual Report” to the City and the BID stakeholders.  The Annual Report  will 
summarize the  prior year’s financial activities and include at the minimum, assets and 
liabilities of the Corporation as of the end of the fiscal year; principal changes in assets and 
liabilities including trust funds during the fiscal year; the revenue or receipts of the of the 
Corporation, both restricted and unrestricted for the fiscal year; expense or disbursements 
of the Corporation, for both general and restricted funds and any information required by 
Section 7 of Article 9 of these Bylaws to be included in the Annual Statement of Specific 
Transactions to Property Owners. 
 
Section 2. Annual Work Plan and Budget 
On or before February, of each year for each fiscal year for which assessments are to be 
levied and collected by the City, the Corporation shall submit to the City an Annual Work 
Plan and Budget for the upcoming fiscal year.   
 
Section 3. Audit or Review 
Annually, the Corporation shall prepare an audit or review that documents the disposition, 
commitment and line-item expenditures of all District revenues received during the previous 
fiscal year.  The Corporation shall have an audit or review conducted in accordance with 
GAGAS within one-hundred fifty (150) days after the end of the applicable Fiscal Year or 
Fiscal Years. 

32



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 19 of 24 
 

 
Section 4. Assessment Data 
A) The Corporation shall maintain a complete database for each business license 

assessed within the District, containing the following information: 
 
1) Business Licensor’s Name 

 
2) Street Address 
 
3) Name and Address of Owner(s) of Record 
 
4) Amount of the BID Assessment Levied 

 
5) BID Assessment Status 

 
If a BID assessee or a member of the public is interested in securing a copy of this list, a 
request can be made to the City’s Economic Development Department. 
 

ARTICLE 10 
CORPORATE RECORDS AND SEAL 

 
Section 1. Maintenance of Corporate Records 
The Corporation shall maintain the following corporate records which shall be maintained 
at the office of the Corporation.  Except for records specifically exempted by law, such 
records shall be available for public review, and posted on the corporation’s website, 
consistent with the provisions the Ralph M. Brown Act: 
 
A) Minutes of all meetings of Directors, standing committees of the Board and all 

meetings of members, indicating the time and place of holding such meetings, 
whether regular or special, the notice given, and the names of those present and the 
proceedings thereof. 
 

B) Adequate and correct books and records of account, including accounts of its 
properties and business transactions and accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, 
disbursements, gains and losses. 

 
C) A record of its stakeholders, if any, indicating their names and addresses.  
 
D) A copy of the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws as amended to date.  
 
E) All tax filings with the Internal Revenue Services and all appropriate and applicable 

offices with the state of California.  
 

33



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 20 of 24 
 

Section 2. Corporate Seal 
The Board of Directors may adopt, use, and at will alter, a corporate seal. Such seal shall 
be kept at the office of the Corporation. Failure to affix the seal to corporate instruments, 
however, shall not affect the validity of any such instrument. 
 
Section 3. Directors' Inspection Rights 
Every Director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect and copy 
all books, records, and documents of every kind and to inspect the physical properties of 
the Corporation. 
 
Section 4. Public’s Inspection Rights 
A) The City, and owners of businesses or properties located within the boundaries of 

the District, and their duly appointed authorized representatives, shall have the 
absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect and copy all books, records and 
documents of every kind not otherwise exempted by law from public inspection. 

 
B) For all purposes of these Bylaws, the term “duly appointed authorized 

representative” shall mean a person who presents to the Secretary or the District 
Manager of the Corporation a written document identifying the owner of real 
business or property located within the boundaries of the District, the identity of the 
real business or property within the District owned by the owner, the identity of the 
representative being appointed, and the scope of the representative’s authorization.  

 
ARTICLE 11 

FISCAL YEAR 
 

The Corporation operates on a fiscal year that begins on the July 1st and end on June 
30th of each year.  

 
ARTICLE 12 
INSURANCE 

 
The Board of Directors shall adopt a resolution authorizing the purchase and maintenance 
of insurance on behalf of any agent of the Corporation (including a Director, officer, 
employee or other agent of the Corporation) against any liability other than for violating 
provisions of law relating to self-dealing (Section 5233 of the California Nonprofit 
Corporation Law) asserted against or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out 
of the agent's status as such, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to 
indemnify the agent against such liability under the provisions of Section 5238 of the 
California Nonprofit Corporation Law. 
 

ARTICLE 13 
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 

 

34



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 21 of 24 
 

Subject to any provision of law applicable to the amendment of Bylaws of public benefit 
nonprofit corporations, these Bylaws, or any of them, may be altered, amended, or 
repealed and new Bylaws adopted as follows: 
 
A) Subject to the power of members, if any, to change or repeal these Bylaws under 

Section 5150 of the Corporations Code, by approval of the Board of Directors unless 
the Bylaw  amendment would materially and adversely affect the rights of members, 
if any, as to voting or transfer, provided, however, if this Corporation has admitted 
any members, then a Bylaw specifying or changing the fixed number of directors of 
the Corporation, the maximum or minimum number of directors, or changing from a 
fixed to variable board or vice versa, may not be adopted, amended, or repealed 
except as provided in Paragraph B of this SECTION; or 
 

B) By approval of the majority action of the sitting Board of Directors. 
 

ARTICLE 14 
PROHIBITED TRANSACTIONS  

 
Section 1. Loans 
Except as permitted by Section 5236 of the Code, the Corporation shall not make any 
loan of money or property to, or guarantee the obligation of, any Director or officer; 
provided, however, that the Corporation may advance money to a Director or officer of 
the Corporation or any subsidiary for expenses reasonably anticipated to be incurred in 
performance of the duties of such officer or Director so long as such individual would be 
entitled to be reimbursed for such expenses absent that advance. 
 
Section 2. Self-Dealing Transactions 
Except as provided in Section 3, below, the Board shall not approve or permit the 
Corporation to engage in any self-dealing transaction.  A self-dealing transaction is a 
transaction to which the Corporation is a party and in which one or more of its Directors 
has a material financial interest, unless the transaction is described in Section 5233(b) of 
the California Corporations Code.  Any Board member who provides a service or product 
to the Board must recuse themselves from discussion as well as moving, seconding or 
voting on that particular issue in which they may have a financial interest.  
 
Section 3. Approval 
This Corporation may engage in a self-dealing transaction if the transaction is approved 
by a court or by the Attorney General.  This Corporation also may engage in a self-dealing 
transaction if the Board determines, before the transaction, that (1) the Corporation is 
entering into the transaction for its own benefit; (2) the transaction is fair and reasonable 
to the Corporation at the time; and (3) after reasonable investigation, the Board 
determines that it could not have obtained a more advantageous arrangement with 
reasonable effort under the circumstances.  Such determinations must be made by the 
Board in good faith, with knowledge of the material facts concerning the transaction and 
the interest of the Director or Directors in the transaction, and by a vote of a majority of 
the Directors then in office, without counting the vote of the interested Director or 
Directors. 

35



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 22 of 24 
 

 
ARTICLE 15 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
AND COMPENSATION APPROVAL POLICIES 

 
Section 1. Purpose of Conflict of Interest Policy 
The purpose of this conflict of interest policy is to protect this tax-exempt Corporation’s 
interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might 
benefit the private interest of an officer or Director of the Corporation or any "disqualified 
person" as defined in Section 4958(f)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code and as amplified 
by Section 53.4958-3 of the IRS Regulations and which might result in a possible "excess 
benefit transaction" as defined in Section 4958(c)(1)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
as amplified by Section 53.4958 of the IRS Regulations. This policy is intended to 
supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of 
interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations. 
 
Section 2. Definitions 
A) Interested Person. Any Director, principal officer, member of a committee with 

governing Board delegated powers, or any other person who is a "disqualified 
person" as defined in Section 4958(f)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code and as 
amplified by Section 53.4958-3 of the IRS Regulations, who has a direct or indirect 
financial interest, as defined below, is an interested person. 

 
B) Financial Interest. A Director has a financial interest if the person has, directly or 

indirectly, through business, investment, or family: 
 

1) an ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Corporation 
has a transaction or arrangement, or 
 

2) a compensation arrangement with the Corporation or with any entity or 
individual with which the Corporation has a transaction or arrangement, or 

 
3) a potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement 

with, any entity or individual with which the Corporation is negotiating a 
transaction or arrangement. 

 
Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are 
not insubstantial. 
 
A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under Section 3, sub-section 
B, a person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the 
appropriate governing Board or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists. 
 
Section 3. Conflict of interest Avoidance Procedures 
A) Duty to Disclose.  In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an 

interested person must disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given 

36



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 23 of 24 
 

the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the Directors and members of 
committees with governing Board delegated powers considering the proposed 
transaction or arrangement. 
 

B) Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists.  After disclosure of the financial 
interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with the interested person, 
he/she shall leave the governing Board or committee meeting while the 
determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The remaining 
Board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists. 

 
C) Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest.   

 
1) An interested person may make a presentation at the governing Board or 

committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting 
during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement 
involving the possible conflict of interest. 
 

2) The chairperson of the governing Board or committee shall, if appropriate, 
appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the 
proposed transaction or arrangement. 

 
3) After exercising due diligence, the governing Board or committee shall 

determine whether the Corporation can obtain with reasonable efforts a more 
advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would 
not give rise to a conflict of interest. 

 
4) If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible 

under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the governing Board 
or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested Directors 
whether the transaction or arrangement is in the Corporation’s best interest, for 
its own benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the 
above determination, it shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the 
transaction or arrangement. 
 

D) Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy.  If the governing Board or committee 
has reasonable cause to believe a Director or committee member has failed to 
disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the individual of the 
basis for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged 
failure to disclose. 
 
If, after hearing the member’s response and after making further investigation as 
warranted by the circumstances, the governing Board or committee determines the 
member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take 
appropriate disciplinary and corrective action. 

 
 

37



       

East Village Association, Inc. 2023 Restated Bylaws (Amended TBD) Page 24 of 24 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
I, the undersigned, certify that I am the currently elected and acting Secretary of East 
Village Association, a California Non-profit Public Benefit Corporation, and the above 
Bylaws, consisting of 23 pages, are the Bylaws of the Corporation as adopted at a 
meeting of the Board held on July 27, 2023. 
 
Dated:   July 27, 2023 TBD 
 
Executed at San Diego, California 
 
 
___________________________________  
Robyn Spencer, Secretary 
 

38



  

EAST VILLAGE ASSOCIATION  
 

1041 Market  St reet  #200   San Diego,  CA 92101   Phone 619-546-5636 
Emai l :  in fo@EastVi l lageSanDiego.com   Websi te :  www.EastVi l lageSanDiego.com 

Facebook /  Twi t ter  /  Instagram:  @EastVi l lageSD   #EastVi l lageSD  

  

East Village Association 
 Board of Directors Alternatives for Consideration 

 

• Angie Weber (Business Director) 
Alternate Member: Jon Weber  
 
 

• David Miles (Business Director) 
Alternate Member: Elena Rangel 
 
 

• Todd Miller (Property Director)  
Alternate Member: Grace Sheehy 

 

39



EVA Board Meeting
PR & Social Media Agenda

Thursday, March 21, 2024

Pitches
Women’s History Month Spotlight

● Secured broadcast coverage on ABC 10, KUSI
● Secured interest with CBS 8, DoSD

Black History Month Spotlight
● Secured online coverage on SD Today, San Diego Union-Tribune, CBS 8, News Break
● Secured print coverage in San Diego Union-Tribune
● Secured broadcast coverage on CBS 8, KUSI

East Village Block Party on Opening Weekend
● Secured online coverage on PubClub, THERE San Diego, FOX 5/KUSI, Yahoo! News, Presidio

Sentinel, DoSD, SD Today, San Diego Family Magazine, San Diego Tourism Authority
● Secured print coverage in Presidio Sentinel, San Diego Family Magazine
● Secured interest with LOCALE Magazine, Coast News Group, San Diego Union-Tribune, 97.3 The

Fan, KYXY, San Diego Business Journal, CBS 8, Gente Bonita Magazine, FOX 5, PubClub, KPBS,
Modern Luxury, Hispanos Unidos

Other Coverage
● Secured online coverage on San Diego Downtown News
● Secured print coverage in San Diego Downtown News

SOCIAL MEDIA
Recap & Highlights

● Gained 308 new followers
● Earned 207K impressions on social posts (57% increase)
● Earned over 2.7K engagements on social posts (12% increase)
● Promoting East Village Block Party

○ Facebook event page has 1914 responses

SOCIAL MEDIA ANALYTICS (Last 30 days as of March 8)

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



CONTACT INFORMATION

Name: __________________________________________________________________________________

Company (If Applicable): _________________________________________________________________

Address: ________________________________________________________________________________

Phone: _______________________________     Email: __________________________________________

I hereby agree to sponsor the above event and level I have selected on behalf of 
myself/business.

Signature: ________________________________________________________

ONCE COMPLETE

Remit form and payment to: East Village Association
Mail to: 1041 Market Street #200, San Diego, CA 92101
Email to: Events@EastVillageSanDiego.com

The East Village Association (EVA) is a 501(c)(3) Corporation.  Any contributions made to 
EVA, are considered tax-deductible.  Please consult with your financial advisor for more 
details.  Federal Tax ID #61-1558972. 

East Village San Diego
2024 Sponsorship Agreement Form

Please select event and level that you would like to sponsor.

FLAGSHIP EVENTS
Check one of the options below.

 East Village Block Party (3/30)
 East Village Oktoberfest (10/5)

FLAGSHIP SPONSORSHIP LEVELS
Check one of the options below.

 Legacy Partner / $20,000
 Premier Partner + “Presented by” on All 

Collateral.

 Premier Partner / $10,000
 Select Partner + Zone/Area Naming 

Rights.

 Select Partner / $7,500
 Community Partner + Activation Space.

 Exhibitor / $2,000
 Community Partner + 10x10 Booth 

Space.

 Community Partner / $1,000
 Hyperlink Logo on Website + Logo on 

Printed Collateral (Event Day).

ANCILLARY EVENTS
Check one of the options below.

 East Village SALUTES! (TBD)
 Taste of East Village (8/28 & 29)
 East Village Tree Lighting & 
           Holiday Market (11/30)

ANCILLARY SPONSORSHIP LEVELS
Check one of the options below.

 Legacy Partner / $10,000
 Premier Partner + “Presented by” on All 

Collateral.

 Premier Partner / $5,000
 Select Partner + Zone/Area Naming 

Rights.

 Select Partner / $3,500
 Community Partner + Activation Space.

 Exhibitor / $1,000
 Community Partner + 10x10 Booth 

Space.

 Community Partner / $500
 Hyperlink Logo on Website + Logo on 

Printed Collateral (Event Day).

53



  

EAST VILLAGE ASSOCIATION  
 

1041 Marke t  Street  #200   San Diego,  CA 92101   Phone 619-546-5636 
Emai l :  in fo@EastVi l lageSanDiego.com   Websi te:  www.EastVi l lageSanDiego.com 

Facebook /  Twi t ter  /  Instagram: @EastVi l lageSD   #EastVi l lageSD 

 
February 15, 2024 
 
Subject: FY25 Community Parking District Budgets & FRED Shuttle Service 
 
Dear Office of Councilmember Stephen Whitburn,  
 
DPMG met recently to discuss FRED and the FY25 Community Parking District budgets.  As 
mentioned in our meeting, there is $2.5M parking meter revenues allocated to cover the 
$1.2M bond debt service on the garages and the remaining $1.3M to be allocated for FRED or 
the Community Parking Districts. 
 
As we mentioned in our meeting, we are requesting the City to move the expense of the 
bond debt and FRED into the City’s 55%.  We also asked Kystal, with Sustainability and 
Mobility, to take our request to Alyssa Muto to see the feasibility of our request.  I am not 
officially speaking for all members of DPMG, but there are several members are in support of 
this request. 
 
The Association is also in support of Gaslamp’s bollard service contract, of $400K, being paid 
annually out of the City’s 55%, as the bollard program for the 5th Avenue Promenade was a 
City CIP project. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  We hope the Councilmember can support the 
request and ask staff to reallocate the funds above. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 

 
 
 
Dominic Li Mandri 
District Manager 
East Village Association 
1041 Market Street #200 
San Diego, CA. 92101 
 
Cc: Mayor Todd Gloria 
GQA Michael Trimble  

54



CURRENT

CITY OF SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA

COUNCIL POLICY

2.          Prior to consideration of the proposal by the City Council or any of its


committees, the requesting entity shall make the proposal publicly available for


review and shall conduct a noticed public meeting for affected citizens in the


proposed Community Parking District. The requesting entity shall also provide


notice of this public meeting to all affected Community Planning Groups.


3.          Geographic areas that, prior to December 31, 1997, were established as Parking


Meter Districts are hereby now designated as established Community Parking


Districts, and the organizations designated by the City Council as Parking Meter


District Advisory Boards are hereby now designated as the established


Community Parking District Advisory Boards.


4.          The Community Parking District Program shall be administered by the Mayor or


City Manager.


B.         Revenues Subject to Allocation to a Community Parking District


1.          Annually, the costs of administering the Community Parking District Program,


including the services of dedicated Transportation Engineer(s), and parking


meter operations costs shall be subtracted from the total parking meter revenue


prior to the calculation of the revenue subject to allocation to the Community


Parking Districts.


2.          A percentage of the total parking meter revenues, less the administrative and


parking meter operations costs described in Section B.1 above, generated within


each Community Parking District shall be allocated to that Community Parking


District on an annual basis. The percentage shall be forty-five (45%) each fiscal


year.

3.          In addition to this 45% allocation, the City may allocate all or a portion of the


parking management-related revenues to a Community Parking District on a


case-by-case basis. Such additional revenues may be allocated to a Community


Parking District so long as all of the following requirements are met:


a.       Any City administrative costs necessary to implement and collect the fees


are fully recovered;


CP-100-18

Page 3 of 13

55



CURRENT

CITY OF SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA

COUNCIL POLICY

b.       The City conducts, or causes to be conducted, an analysis of the proposed


use(s) of the additional parking management-related revenues, and the


analysis indicates that the amount allocated, along with any other


authorized revenues, is sufficient to implement and manage the proposed


use(s);

c.       The amount allocated is no more than necessary to implement and manage


the proposed use(s); and


d.       The City determines through a fiscal impact analysis that the Community


Parking District’s proposed use(s) is/are in the City’s long-term best


interest.

4.          For the purpose of this Policy, City revenues which may be allocated to a


Community Parking District in addition to parking meter revenue, if any, may


include:

a.          Fees paid by users to park in a facility operated by the Community


Parking District;


b.          Valet parking fees;


c.          Residential or shopper parking permit fees;


d.          Parking in-lieu fees levied on new development; and


e.          Any other authorized fees obtained to regulate parking in a Community


Parking District.


5.          Community Parking District revenues allocated to each Community Parking


District will be disbursed pursuant to the adoption and approval of an Annual


Plan & Budget submitted to the City Council, as provided in sections C and D


below. The Mayor or City Manager shall maintain relevant data indicating the


location of each parking meter, revenue earned by each meter, and other revenue


sources, for the purpose of projecting and verifying parking management-related


revenues allocable to each District.


CP-100-18

Page 4 of 13

56


	EVA Board Ag 3.21.24 Draft.pdf
	EVA Board Minutes 2.15.24 Draft.pdf
	YTD Financials February (1).pdf
	EVA CD Rollover.pdf
	EVA Draft Bylaws 2024 .pdf
	East Village Board Alternate Member Forms Received.pdf
	Olive PR_EVA Board Meeting Agenda_March.docx.pdf
	FINAL EVBP Poster.pdf
	eva-2024-sponsor-guide.pdf
	EVA 2024 Sponsor Guide-1
	EVA 2024 Sponsor Guide-2
	EVA 2024 Sponsor Guide-3
	EVA 2024 Sponsor Guide-4
	EVA 2024 Sponsor Guide-5
	EVA 2024 Sponsor Guide-6
	EVA 2024 Sponsor Guide-7
	EVA 2024 Sponsor Guide-8
	DCV 2024 Sponsor Guide v2-9
	EVA 2024 Sponsor Guide-9

	eva-2024-sponsor-agreement.pdf
	FY25 CPD Budgets & FRED.pdf
	cpd_100-18.pdf

	East Village Block Party 330: Off
	East Village Oktoberfest 105: Off
	Legacy Partner  20000: Off
	Premier Partner  10000: Off
	Select Partner  7500: Off
	Exhibitor  2000: Off
	Community Partner  1000: Off
	East Village SALUTES TBD: Off
	Taste of East Village 828  29: Off
	East Village Tree Lighting: Off
	Legacy Partner  10000: Off
	Premier Partner  5000: Off
	Select Partner  3500: Off
	Exhibitor  1000: Off
	Community Partner  500: Off
	Name: 
	Company If Applicable: 
	Address: 
	Phone: 
	Email: 


